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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 19" Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of Mawana Foods
Private Limited (the “Company/"MFPL”) will be held on Wednesday, the 24th day of July, 2024 at 10:00
A.M. through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”") to transact the
following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS (ES):

1. To consider and adopt the financial statements as at 31 March 2024 together with the Reports
of Directors’ and Auditors’ thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rajesh Tara (DIN: 06927480), who retires by rotation and
being eligible offers himself for reappointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS(ES):

3 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following Resolution
as a Special Resolution:

“Resolved that pursuant to recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and approval of the Board of Directors and subject to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203
and Schedule — V of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, consent
of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to reappoint Mr. Anurag Mishra as
the Manager of the Company for a period of 1 (one) year with effect from 20t April 2024 till 19"
April 2025 on such remuneration as may be decided by the Board.

Resolved further that the consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded
for the payment of following remuneration to Mr. Anurag Mishra as the Manager of the
Company effective from 01 January 2024:

a) Basic Salary: Rs. 6.45 Lakhs per annum

b) Special Allowance: Rs. 15.98 Lakhs per annum



c)

d)

e)

9)

House Rent Allowance @ 40% of Basic salary

Contribution to medical allowance, provident fund and gratuity to be as per the rules of the
Company (Medical — Rs. 0.24 Lakhs per annum)

Leave Travel Assistance, conveyance allowance, leaves to be as per the rules of the Company
(LTA — Rs. 0.37 Lakhs per annum)

Payment for Bills of Mobile phones as per the rules of the Company.

He is also eligible for a variable pay of INR 0.00 to INR 1.35 lacs PA based on the performance
and as per applicable rules of the company.

Income Tax Incidence in respect of salary and perquisites shall be borne by Mr. Anurag Mishra.

Resolved further that Mr. Anurag Mishra as a Manager shall be entitled to the above Salary,
Aliowances and Perquisites even in the absence or inadequacy of profits as per the provisions
of Section 197(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Resolved further that other terms and conditions of appointment Mr. Anurag Mishra as
Manager shall remain same as that of his appointment letter issued by the Company.

Resolved further that Ms. Atreyee Das, Company Secretary of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to execute, sign and file necessary application/forms with the Registrar of
Companies (ROC) or any other government authority and to take such other steps as may be
necessary in this regard.”

By the order of the Board of
Mawana Foods Private Limited

Place: New Delhi S

Date: 01.07.2024 ompahy Secretary
M No. A36654
Add: T-87, Uttam Nagar,
New Delhi-110059



NOTE:

i) The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) vide its circular nos. 09/2023 has permitted the
holding of the Annual General Meeting (‘AGM”) through VC / OAVM, without the physical
presence of the Members at a common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act’) and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held
through VC / OAVM.

i) Since the AGM is being conducted through VC/ OAVM (without the physical presence of the
members), the Proxy Form, Attendance Slip, Route Map and place of the meeting are not
required.

iii) Corporate members intending to attend the AGM through authorized representatives are
requested to send a scanned copy of the duly certified copy of the board or governing body
resolution authorizing the representatives to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting at
the given email ID: atreyee_das@usha.com.

Explanatory Statement

As required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (*Act’), the following explanatory statement
sets out all material facts relating to business mentioned under Item Nos. 3 of the accompanying
Notice:

Item No. 3:

The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 08 February 2024 accepted the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and in terms of Section 203 and
196 of the Companies Act, 2013, approved the reappointment of Mr. Anurag Mishra as Manager under
the Companies Act, 2013 for a period of one year effective from 20" April 2024 on the existing terms
of his employment as per the appointment letter issued to him by the Company.

The Company proposes to pay the remuneration disclosed in the Resolution as minimum
remuneration to Mr. Anurag Mishra in case of absence of inadequacy of profit during financial year. It
is also disclosed that at the time of obtaining this approval of the members of the Company, the
Company has not defaulted in payment of dues to any bank or public financial institution or any other
secured creditors. In terms of Section 196 and 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors
recommend for your approval the reappointment and remuneration as per the resolution to be paid as
the minimum remuneration.

Except Mr. Anurag Mishra, none of the other Key Manegerial Personnels or Directors of the Company
and their respective relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, in the proposed resolution.



STATEMENT PURSUANT TO CLAUSE (B) OF SECTION Il OF PART-Il OF SCHEDULE V OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND SECRETARIAL STANDARD-l ON “GENERAL MEETINGS”
ISSUED BY THE INSTITUTE OF COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA:

L. GENERAL INFORMATION

I General Information

1. Nature of Industry:

Mawana Foods Private Limited (the “Company”) is engaged in the business of trading
of Sugar.

2, Date or expected date of commencement of commercial production:
The Company is an existing company.

3. In case of new companies, expected date of commencement of activities as per
the project approved by financial institutions appearing in the prospectus:

Not Applicable

4. Financial performance based on given indicators:
(In Lakhs)
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22* 2020-21
3265,87 8,491.79 10,598.84
Total Income
(95.93)
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax 394.95 (94.78)
(97.76)
Profit / (Loss) After Tax 364.95 (94.78)
* including discontinued business
5. Export performance and net foreign exchange collaborations for F.Y. 2023-24:

Nil.

6. Foreign Investments- Nil



1. INFORMATION ABOUT THE APPOINTEE OR WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR WHO’S
REMUNERATION IS TO BE APPROVED

1. Background Details
(a) Date of Birth: 08 September 1974
(b) Age: 48 years

(c) Qualifications: He is a qualified MBA in marketing and holding executive certification in supply chain
from |IM, Rohtak.

(d) Experience: Mr. Anurag Mishra is currently heading supply chain department in the Company.

Before Mawana Foods Private Limited, he was associated with Mawana Sugar Limited since 2011
and his earlier assignment were with Godfrey Philips India Limited, Trivani Engineering and Reliance
Logistics. He has vast experience in FMCG sector.

2. Shareholding in the Company: Nil

3. The number of meetings of the Board attended during the year and other Directorships,

Memberships / Chairmanships of Committees of other Boards. Nil

4. Terms and conditions of remuneration sought to be paid: As set out in the resolution no. 3.

5. Past Remuneration: Remuneration paid last year was Rs. 24.9 Lacs per annum

6. Job Profile and his suitability:

Manager shall discharge such functions as may be delegated from time to time by the Board of
Directors of the Company.

7. Remuneration Proposed:

The details of the proposed remuneration paid to Mr. Anurag Mishra for the period from 20" April 2024
to 191 April 2025 are given in the resolution at item No. 3.

8. Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, the size of the Company, profile

of the position and person.

The proposed remuneration is as per the expertise and skills of Mr. Anurag Mishra and, is in line with
the overall remuneration trends within the industry.



9. Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the Company, other Directors, managers
and other Key Managerial Personnel, if any.

Mr. Anurag Mishra is not related to any of the other Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company.
lll. OTHER INFORMATION

1. Reasons for loss or Inadequate Profits: The loss has been incurred primarily due to subdued
economic growth and increased competition.

2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement: The company is focussing on profitable
markets.

3. Expected increase in productivity and profits in measurable terms: Except for unforeseen
circumstances, the Company hopes to increase the revenue and profits in the future.

IV. DISCLOSURES:

1. All elements of remunerations package such as salary, benefits, bonuses, stock options,
pension etc of all the directors: None of the directors of the Company are in receipt of any salary,
benefits, bonuses, stock options, pension etc.

2. Details of fixed component and performance linked incentives along with the performance
criteria: as set out in the item No. 3.

3. Service contract, notice period, severance fees: No compensation for the loss of office shall
be payable as per the provisions of section 202 of the Companies Act, 2013.

4. Stock options details, if any, and whether the same has been issued at discount as well as
the period over which accrued and over which exercisable: No stock options has been offered
by the Company.

By the order of the Board of
Mawana Foods Private Limited

M

Place: New Delhi Atreyee Das
Date: 01.07.2024 Company Secretary
M No. A36654

Add: T-87, Uttam Nagar,
New Delhi-110059



Mawana Foods Private Limited
(Formerly known as Mawana Foods Limited)
CIN: U74899DL2006PLC144412
Regd. Office: 5" Floor, Kirti Mahal, 19, Rajendra Place, New Delhi — 110 008
Tel: +91-11-25739103, Fax: +-1-11-25743659
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To

The Members

Mawana Foods Private Limited
New Delhi

BOARD’S REPORT

Your Directors present the 19" Annual Report on the business and operations of the
Company and the accounts for the financial year ended 31 March 2024.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The performance of the Company including discontinued operations for the financial year
ended 31 March 2024 is summarized below:

(In Lakhs)
S.No. | Particulars Financial Year Ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

1 Total Income 3443.23 3265.97
2 Earnings before interest, (26.68) (86.39)

depreciation, and tax
3 Less:

a) Interest 6.53 0.52

b) Depreciation and 12.52 9.02

amortization

c) Current Tax/tax

pertaining to previous year - 1.83

(Loss ) after-tax (45.73) (97.76)

Note: The Profit after Tax as on 31 March 2024 is Rs. (45.73) Lakhs against loss of Rs.
(97.76) Lakhs as on 31 March 2023 and the Reserves and Surplus is Rs. (1909.79) lakhs
as at 31 March 2024 {Rs. (1864.19) Lakhs as on 31 March 2023}. The Net Worth of the
Company as on 31 March 2024 is Rs. 93.90 lakhs {Rs. 139.50 Lakhs as on 31 March 2023}.

RESERVES

The amount which the Board proposes to carry to any reserve is NIL



DIVIDEND

Since there are no divisible profits during the year and in view of accumulated losses of
previous years, no dividend was paid for the financial year ended 31 March 2024.

DEPOSITS OF THE COMPANY

The Company has a policy to not accept any Public Deposits. The Company has no Public
Deposits at the end of the Financial Year.

SHARE CAPITAL

The authorized share capital of the Company is 2,50,00,000 (Two Crores Fifty Lakhs Only)
equity shares of Rs. 10/- each amounting to Rs. 25,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Five Crores
Only) and the issued, paid-up and subscribed share capital of the Company is
Rs. 20,03,68,510/- (Rupees Twenty Crores Three Lakhs Sixty Eight Thousand Five Hundred
and Ten Only) divided into 2,00,36,851 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES OF THE COMPANY
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The Company is an Associate Company of Mawana Sugars Limited.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

There was no change in the nature of business of the Company during the financial year ended
31-March 2024.

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

A brief description of the Company’s operations during the financial year ended 31
March 2024 is as follows:

The Company deals in Sugar during the year. The total Income of the Company is Rs 3443.23
lakhs in the current year as against Rs.3265.97 lakhs in the previous year.

The Company had made loss before tax of Rs.45.73 lakhs as against the loss of Rs. 95.93
lakhs in the previous year. The operating profit (EBITDA) of the Company in the current year
is Rs (26.68) lakhs as against Rs. (86.39) lakhs in the previous year.

SIGNIFICANT _AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY COURT, REGULATORS AND
TRIBUNALS

During the year ended 31 March 2024, there are no significant and material orders passed by
the regulators or courts or tribunals which would impact the going concern status of the
Company’s operations in the future.



MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

No material changes and commitments are affecting the financial position of the Company
which has occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial
statements relate and the date of the report.

AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 001076N/N500013) was the
Statutory Auditors of the Company for the FY 2023-24.

INTERNAL AUDITORS

M/s BDO India was appointed as Internal Auditors of the Company to ensure an effective
internal control mechanism for the Financial Year 2023-24.

AUDITORS’ REPORT

The observations of the Auditors in their report, read with relevant notes to the accounts are
self-explanatory and do not require further explanation. Further, there is no qualification,
reservation, or adverse remark or disclaimer made by the auditor in the report.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

Your Company has put in place adequate policies and procedures to ensure that the system
of internal financial control is commensurate with the size and nature of the Company’s
business. A regular internal audit and review processes by M/s BDO India ensure that the
controls are reinforced on an ongoing basis. Such controls have been assessed during the year
taking into consideration the essential components of internal financial controls. Based on the
assessment carried out by the Company, the internal financial controls were adequate and
effective and no reportable material weakness or significant deficiencies in the design or
operation of internal financial controls were observed, during the year ended 31 March 2024.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

There is no conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and
outgo of foreign exchange in the Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2024.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

As on 31 March 2024, the Company has no employee in terms of the provisions of Rule 5(2)
of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

As on 31 March 2024, according to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 there are no
particulars of loans or guarantees in the Company.




PARTICULARS OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

According to Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 the particulars of every contract or
arrangement entered into by the Company with related parties including arm’s length
transactions under the third provision thereto are in Form No. AOC-2, enclosed as Annexure
-1

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN OF THE COMPANY

In accordance with Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, an extract of the Annual
Return of the Company will be available on hitps://www.mawanafoods.com/.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has a risk management policy. The development and implementation of a risk
management policy of the Company include the identification therein of elements of risk, which
in the opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to the Directors’
Responsibility Statement, the Directors confirm that:

(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) That accounting policies have been applied consistently and judgments and estimates
were made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss
of the Company for that period;

(c) That proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) That the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis; and

(e) That the Company has laid down internal financial controls and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

(f) That proper system has been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

DETAILS OF DIRECTOR AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

There is no change in the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, during the
year ended 31 March 2024.

However, Mr. A.K. Mehra has resigned from the Company on 26 April 2024, due to his ill health.

Y
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DIRECTORS DETAILS (RETIREMENT AND RE-APPOINTMENT)

Mr. Rajesh Tara (DIN:06927480), Director will retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting of the Company and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment.

DECLARATION U/S 149 (6) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The Independent Directors have submitted their respective disclosure to the Board that they
fulfill all the requirements as stipulated in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and are
qualified to be appointed as Independent Directors under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the relevant rules.

ANNUAL EVALUATION

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance and that
of its Committees and Individual Directors.

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board
Committees and individual Directors as per the guidelines laid by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India (ICSI). The performance of the Board and Committees thereof was
evaluated based on the criteria such as the composition and structure, effectiveness of
processes, information, the involvement of the Members and functioning etc. The Board
reviewed the performance of the individual Directors based on the criteria such as the
contribution of the individual Director to the Board and Committee meetings like preparedness
on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive discussion and inputs in meetings,
etc.

The review concluded by affirming that the Board as a whole, the Committees of the Board as
well as all its Members, individually, continued to display a commitment to good governance,
ensuring constant improvement of processes and procedures. It was further acknowledged that
every individual Member of the Board and the Committee thereof contribute its best in the
overall growth of the organization.

SEXUAL HARASSMENT PROHIBITION POLICY

Pursuant to the “Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013”, the Company constituted Internal Complaints Committees at its
workplaces. During the year 2023-24, there has not been any instance of complaint reported
in this regard.

BOARD & COMMITTEE MEETINGS OF THE COMPANY

BOARD MEETINGS

At the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company’s Board consists of 4 (four) Directors.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, 4 (four) Board meetings were held on 27 May 2023, 11
August 2023, 09 November 2023, and 08 February 2024. Necessary Quorum was present at
all the meetings. The intervening gap between any two meetings was within the period
prescribed in the Companies Act, 2013. The Composition of the Board and the number of
meetings attended by the Directors during the FY 2023-24 is as below:

11




Director Executive/ Independent / Non-| No. of Meetings
Non-Executive Independent during the F.Y.
2023-24
Held Attended
Mr. Rajesh Tara Non Executive Non Independent 4 4
Mr. A. K Mehra Non-Executive Non-Independent 4 4
Mr. A.K. Kaul Non-Executive independent 4 4
Mr. G.R Arora Non-Executive Independent 4 4

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS OF THE COMPANY

During the year the Audit Committee comprised of one Non-Executive Non-Independent
Director and two Non Executive Independent Directors.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, 4 (four) Audit Committee Meetings were held on 27 May
2023, 11 August 2023, 09 November 2023 and 08 February 2024. Necessary Quorum was
present at all the meetings. Company Secretary acted as a Secretary to the Audit Committee.

The composition of the Audit Committee and the number of meetings attended by its members

during the FY 2023-24 are as below:

Member/ Director Executive/ Independent /| No. of Meetings during the
Non-Executive | Non-Independent | F.Y. 2023-24
Held Attended
Mr. A.K. Kaul Non-Executive Independent 4 4
Mr. GR Arora Non-Executive Independent 4 4
Mr. A.K. Mehra Non-Executive | Non-Independent 4 4

During the year there is no recommendation of the Audit Committee in any meeting which was
not accepted and approved by the Board.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE MEETINGS OF THE COMPANY

During the F.Y. 2023-24, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprised of one Non
Executive Non Independent Director and two Non Executive Independent Directors.

The Remuneration Policy adopted by the Company is enclosed as Annexure-2. .

During the year, 1 (one) meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) was
held on 08 February 2024. Necessary Quorum was present at the meeting. Company Secretary
acted as a Secretary to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the number of meetings
attended by the members during the FY 2023-24 is as below:

Member /Director Executive/ Independent/ Non-| No. of Meetings
Non-Executive Independent during the F.Y.
2023-24
Held Attended
Mr. A.K. Kaul Non-Executive Independent 1 1
Mr. Rajesh Tara Non-Executive Non-Independent 1 1
Mr. GR Arora Non-Executive Independent 1 1

12
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and unstinting efforts of Vendors, Dealers, Shareholders, Business Associates and Employees
in ensuring all round operational performance.

On behalf of the Board of
Mawana Foods Private Limited

NomsenSs v F s

Arun Kumar Kaul Rajgsh Tara
Director Director

DIN: 09127653 DIN: 06927480

Add: W 1C 126, Wellington Estate, Add: 85, Krishnapuri,
DLF City Phase V, Gurgaon 122002 Vikaspuri Extension,

New Delhi- 110018

Place: New Delhi
Date: 22.05.2024
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ANNEXURE -1

Form No. AOC-2 as on 31 March 2024
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the
Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including arms length transactions under the third proviso thereto

1. DETAILS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS OR TRANSACTIONS NOT AT
ARM’S LENGTH BASIS: NIL

(@) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if
any

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions
(f)  Date of approval by the Board
(g) Amount paid as advances, if any:

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required
under the first proviso to section 188:

2.  DETAILS OF MATERIAL CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENT OR TRANSACTIONS AT
ARM’S LENGTH BASIS:

(1) Sub Lease Agreement with Usha International Limited, Holding Company:

(@) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship — Usha International
Limited, Holding Company.

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions — To take on lease a portion of
the premises of UIL offices and warehouse at various locations with effect
from 01 November 2018.

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions — NA

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the
value, if any: at arm’s length basis.

(e) Date of approval by the Board, if any: 05 February 2019

(fy)  Amount paid as advances, if any: No

14




(2) Availing IT support services from Usha International Limited (UIL), Holding
Company:

(@) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship — Usha International
Limited, Holding Company.

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions — Information Technology (IT)
support services agreement with Usha International Limited has been renewed

at a fee of Rs. 5.86 lacs per annum plus GST for a period of three years wef
01 July 2021.

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions — 3 years wef 01 July
2021. '

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the
value, if any: at arm’s length basis.

(e) Date of approval by the Board, if any: 11 February 2022

(f)  Amount paid as advances, if any: No

On behalf of the Board of
Mawana Foods Private Limited

Awsn® &mzjw

Arun Kumar Kaul Rajésh Tara

Director Director

DIN: 09127653 DIN: 06927480

Add: W1C 126, Wellington Estate, Add: 85, Krishnapuri,
DLF City Phase V, Gurgaon 122002 Vikaspuri Extension,

New Delhi - 110018

§

Place: New Delhi
Date: 22.05.2024
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MAWANA FOODS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY
Objective

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and this policy are In Compllance with the Section
178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto. The key objective of
the policyis:

a) To recommend to the Board the remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management.

b} To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to
the Board for further evaluation of the Board.

¢} Te gulde the Board in refation to appointment and removal of Directors and Key Managerial
Personnal,

d} To provide to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management bonus linked directly to
their efforts, performance, dedication and achlevement relating to Company’s operations.

e} To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented
managerial personnel and create competitive advantage.

Policy for appointment, remuneration and removal of Directors, Key Manageriat Personnel and
Sentor Management

1. Directors-

1.1 Appointment criteria and Qualification for Whole Time Director/independent
Directors

1. The Committee shall identify and ascertaln the integrity, qualification, expertise
and experience of the person for appointment as Whole Time Directors and
Independent Directors and recommend to the Board for approval.

2. A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for
the position he/she is considered for appointment.

3. The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as a
Whole Time Director who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that
the term of the person holding this position may be extended beyond the age of
seventy years with the approval of shareholders by passing a special resalution
based on the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such moticn
indication the justification for extensioa of appointment beyond seventy years.

16
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1.2 Term/Tenure
A, Whole-time Director:
The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Executive
Chairman or Executive Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time.
No re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of
aterm.
B. Independent Director:

An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive
years on the Board of the Company and will be eligible for re-appointment
on passing of a special resolution by the Company and disclosure of such
appointment in the Board's report.

No Independent Director shall heold office for more than two consecutive
terms, but such Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after
expiry of three years of ceasing to become an Independent Director.

1.3 Removal

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned In the Act or under any other
applicable Act, rules and regulations thereunder, the Committee may recommend,
to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director subject to the
provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules and regulation.

14 Remuneration

A,

Whole Time Directors

a) Fixed pay:

The Whole-time Director shall be aligible for a monthly remuneration as
may be approved by the Board on the recommendation of the
Comnmittee. The breakup of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites
including, employer’s contribution to P.F, pension scheme, medicat
expenses, club fees etc. shall be decided and approved by the Board/the
Person authorized by the Beard on the recommendation of the

Committee and approved by the shareholders and Central Government,

wherever required.

b) Perquisites — in the form of house rent allowance/accommodation,
furnishing allowance, reimbursement of medical expenses, conveyance,
telephone, leave travel etc.

17
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c} Retirement Benefits ~ contribution to PF, superannuation, gratuity etc
as per the Company’s rules.

d} Bonus/increment — A performance appraisal is carrled out and bonus/
increments shall be decided by the Board on the recommendation of
the Committee and approved by the shareholders and Central
Government, wherever required.

e} Sitting fees — no sitting fees shall be payable to the Whole Time
Directors of the Company.

f}  Minimum Remuneration:

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are
inadequate, the Company shal! pay remuneration to its Whole-time
Director in accordance with the provisions of Schedule V of the Act and
if it is not able to comply with such provisions, with the previous
approval of the Central Government.

g) Provislons for excess remuneration:

If any Whole-time Director draws or receives, directly or indirectly by
way of remuneration any such sums in excess of the limits prescribed
under the Act ar without the prior sanction of the Central Government,
where required, he / she shall refund such sums to the Company and
until such sum is refunded, held it in trust for the Company. The
Company shall not waive recovery of such sum refundable to it unless
permitted by the Central Gavernment.

Remuneration to Non — Executive and independent Directors

. Sittlng fees:

The Non- Executive / Independent Director may receive remuneration by
way of sitting fees for attending meetings of Board or Committee thereof as
approved by the Board. Provided that the amount of such fees shall not
exceed Rs. One Lac per meeting of the Board or Committee or such amount
as may be prescribed by the Central Government from time to time.

. Commission:

Commission may be paid within the monetary iimit as recommended by the
Board and approved by shareholders, subject to the limit not exceeding 1%
of the profits of the Company computed as per the applicable provisions of
the Act.
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2.

Key Managerial Personnel {(KMP} and Senior Management -
(A} Appointment of KMP and Senior Management:

Appointment and removal of KMP and Senior Management are subject to the approval of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors.

Further, for the remaval of KMP, the Committee shall recornmend to the Board with reasons

recorded in writing,
(B) Remuneration of KMP and Senior Management:

{a) KMP: The remuneration of KMP shall be subject to the approval of the Nomination and
Remuneration Cornmittee and the Board of Directors.

{b) Senior Management: The remuneration of the Senior Management shall be decided by
the Board.

The Remuneration of the KMP and Senior Management shall be based on the objectives and
parameters defined in this policy. Total remuneration of the KMP and Senior Management
shalt comprise of the following elerments:

1. A fixed base salary - set at a ievel aimed at attracting and retaining
executives with professional and personal competence, showling good
performance towards achieving Company’s goals.

2. Perquisites — in the form of house rent allowance/accommodation,
furnishing allowance, reimbursement of medical expenses, conveyance,
telephone, leave travel, etc.

3. Retirement benefits - contribution to PF, superannuation, gratuity, etc as per
Company's Rules.

4. Bonus - A performance appraisal is carried out annually and
bonus/promotions/ increments shall be decided by Board.

Application of the Remuneration Policy

This Remuneration Policy shall continue to guide all future employment of Directors including Whale
Time Directors {WTDs) and Independent Directors {IDs}, Company's Senior Management including
Key Managerial Personnel and other employees.

Any departure from the policy can be undertaken only with the approval of the Board of Directors.

For and

behalf of the Board of Directors

Foods Private Limited
? A vZ-o

DIN: 06927480
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
21st Floor, DLF Square

Jacaranda Marg, DLF Phase (i,

Gurugram - 122 002
Haryana, India

T +91 124 462 8099
F +91 124 462 8001

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Mawana Foods Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Mawana Foods Private Limited

(‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and
its loss (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Charferad Accoumants Walker Chandiok & Co LLP is registered
with imted habitity wih identification

Offices in B G J Chennai, B . Goa, G Hy . Kochi, Kcikata, Mumba, number AAC-2085 and has its registerad

New Deim Noida and Pune office at L-41, Connaught Circus, Outer

Curcie, New Delhi, 110001, India

20



Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

. The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Director's report, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

. The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of
Directors. The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

Chartered Accountants
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As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10)
of the Act we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

¢ lIdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls;

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management;

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern; and

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit, we report that the Company has
paid remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and
limits laid down under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure
A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on
our audit, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the
accompanying financial statements:

Chartered Accountants
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b)

c)

d)

f)

9)

h)

Ch

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters
stated in paragraph 13(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended);

The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024
from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith,
reference is made to our remarks in paragraph 13(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule
11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended);

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company as on 31 March 2024 and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure B wherein we have expressed an
unmodified opinion; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company, as detailed in note 27 to the financial statements, has disclosed the
impact of pending litigation on its financial position as at 31 March 2024;

ii. ~ The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2024,

iii. ~ There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended
31 March 2024;

a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in note 38(v) to the financial statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (‘the
Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

artered Accountants
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b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,

as disclosed in note 38(vi) to the financial statements, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend
orinvest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries: and

Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the management representations under sub-clauses
(a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement.

V. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March

2024.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company, in respect of
financial year commencing on 01 April 2023, has used accounting software for
maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software except that, audit trail feature was not enabled at database
level for accounting software to log any direct data changes, as described in note 37
to the financial statements. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come
across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with in respect of the
accounting software where such feature is enabled.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

/\Zo»(nr o2

Rohit Arora
Partner

Membership No.: 504774

Place: Gurugram
Date: 22 May 2024
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Mawana Foods Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2024

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we report that:

()(@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment and of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets have been physically verified
by the management during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification. In our opinion, the frequency of physical verification programme adopted by
the Company, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets.

(c) The Company does not own any immovable property (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(d) The Company has adopted cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
right-of-use assets) and intangible assets. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as
amended) and rules made thereunder.

(ih(a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each
class of inventory were noticed as compared to book records.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits by banks or financial institutions on
the basis of security of current assets at any point of time during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iii) The Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or granted
any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under sections 185 and 186 of the
Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(v) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be
deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance
of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section

(1) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/ services / business
activities. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Mawana Foods Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2024 (cont’d)

(vii)(a)

(b)

(viii)

(ix)

x) (a)

(b)

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty
of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the
appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were
outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on
account of any dispute except for the following:

Name of the | Nature | Gross Amount Period to | Forum where
statute of Amount paid which  the | dispute is pending
dues (Rs. in | under amount
lakhs) Protest relates
(Rs. in
lakhs)
The Punjab | Sales 222 | - Financial Deputy
Value Added | Tax year 2010-11 | Commissioner
Tax, 2005 Officer, Jalandhar

According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books of accounts.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
loans or other borrowings from any lender. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no

fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period
covered by our audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us

by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act has
been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us

(xii)

Chartered Accountants

by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower compiaints received by the
Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Mawana Foods Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2024 (cont’'d)

(xiii)

(xiv)(a)

(b)

(xv)

(xvi)(a)

(b)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188
of the Act, where applicable. Further, the details of such related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements, as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24,
Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as
prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has an
internal audit system which is commensurate with the size and nature of its business as required
under the provisions of section 138 of the Act.

We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the
period under audit.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section
192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of
the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016) does not have any Core Investment Company.

The Company has incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial years amounting to Rs. 70.06 lakhs and Rs. 76.02 lakhs respectively.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information in the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board
of Directors and management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
company as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not meet the criteria
as specified under sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and according, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Mawana Foods Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2024 (cont’'d)

(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of
said clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

(ORE Per?

Rohit Arora

Partner

Membership No.: 504774
UDIN: 24504774BKEOAT1 142

Place: Gurugram
Date: 22 May 2024
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Annexure B

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(‘the Act)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Mawana Foods Private Limited (‘the Company’)
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (‘Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI") prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of
such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's interal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the fransactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance

Chartered Accountants

29




Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Mawana Foods
Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the palicies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

in our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based
on internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAJ.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

@\,&C W

Rohit Arora

Partner

Membership No.: 504774
UDIN: 24504774BKEOAT 1142

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 22 May 2024

Chartered Accountants
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Mawana Foods Private Limited

Balance sheet as at 31 March 2024

CIN: U74899DL2006PTC144412

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in  lacs)

. As at As at
Particulars Notes 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
a) Property, plant and equipment 3A 2.46 2,94
b) Right of use assets 3B 28.96 -
c) Intangible assets 4 0.02 0.02
d) Non-current tax assets (net) 5 1.93 1.75
Total non-current assets 33.37 4.71
Current assets
a) Inventories 6 60.09 37.84
b) Financial assets

i) Trade receivables 7 111.32 68.50

ii) Cash and cash equivalents 8 292.92 281.99
c) Other current assets 9 39.91 50.10
Total current assets 504.24 438.43
Total assets 537.61 443.14
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
a) Equity share capital 10 2,003.69 2,003.69
b) Other equity 11 (1,909.79) (1,864.19)
Totai equity 93.90 139.50
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities

i) Lease liabilities 12 17.61 -
b) Provisions 13 28.64 29.44
Total non-current liabilities 46.25 29,44
Current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities

i) Lease liabilities 12 13.11 -

ii} Trade payables 14

Total outstanding due to micro enterprises and small enterprises 16.54 18.44
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 331.00 224.96

iii) Other financial liabilities 15 8.37 8.30
b) Other current liabilities 16 22,72 16.95
c) Provisions 13 5.72 5.55
Total current liabilities 397.46 274.20
Total liabilities 443.71 303.64
Total equity and liabilities 537.61 443.14

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 001076N/N500013

0 o c‘ Tz
Rohit Arora

Partner
Membership No.504774

Place: Gurugram
Date: 22 May 2024

Mora

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Mawgna Foods Private Limited

2 T

Rajesh Tara
rector
DIN: 06927480

Director
DIN: 09465677

MRN :A36854

Place: Gurugram
Date : 22 May 2024

A,

Arun Kumar Kaul
Director

DIN : 08127653 n
Narendes Jain

Chief Financial Officer
M.No.511778
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Mawana Foods Private Limited

Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024

CIN: U74899DL2006PTC144412

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in T lacs, except for share data)

For the year ended

For the year ended

SL. .
No, Farticulars Notts 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Revenue
Revenue from operations 17 3,403.41 3,247.18
Other income 18 39.82 18.78
Total income 3,443.23 3,265.97
2 Expenses
Purchases of stock-in-trade 19 2,893.28 2,759.17
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 20 (22.25) 18.37
Employee benefits expense 21 297.77 300.94
Finance cost 22 6.53 0.52
Depreciation and amortisation expense 23 12.52 9.02
Other expenses 24 301.11 273.88
Total expenses 3,488.96 3,361.90
3 Loss before tax {1-2) (45.73) (95.93)
4 Tax expense v 25
a) Current tax - -
b) Adjustment related to earlier year - 1.83
c) Deferred tax - -
Total tax expense - 1.83
5 Loss for the year (3-4) (45.73) (97.76)
6 Other comprehensive income
ltems that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss
-Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (0.13) (0.01)
-Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss - -
Total other comprehensive Income {0.13) (0.01)
7 Total comprehensive Income for the year (5+6) (45.60) (97.75)
8 Loss per equity share (Basic and Diluted) 26 (0.23) (0.49)

VA% s e

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 001076N/N500013

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Mawana Foods Private Limited

et Yo Anaard

Rohit Arora Rajésh Tara Arun Kumar Kaul
Partner Director Director
Membership No.504774 DIN: 06927480 DIN : 09127653

Place: Gurugram r Jain
Date: 22 May 2024 Director Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 09465677 M.N0.511778

MRN :A36654 ZAN!
/ -j/" "\,__
Place: Gurugram | :_"{." \ &
Date: 22 May 2024 Y !
"\I\
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Mawana Foods Private Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2024
CIN: U74899DL2006PTC 144412

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in ¥ lacs)

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

A, Cash flow from operating activities

Loss before income tax

Adjustment for
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Provision for doubtful advance /balances
Interest expense
Liabilities written back
Loss allowance on trade receivables
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Interest income

Operating loss before working capital changes

Adjustment for changes in working capital
Movement in trade receivables
Movement in inventories
Movement in other assets
Movement in trade payables
Movement in other liabilities
Movement in provisions
Cash generated from/ (used in) operations
Income taxes paid (Net of refund)
Net cash generated from/ (used in) operations (A)

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Interest received
Net cash generated from investing activities {B)

C. Cash flow used in financing activities
Interest paid
Payment of lease liabilities
Net cash used in financing activities (C)

D. Netdecrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

E. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 8)

(45.73) (95.93)
12.52 9.02
- 7.15
6.53 0.52
(27.38) (6.25)
. 9.99
0.04 5
(12.36) (10.21)
(66.38) (85.71)
(37.47) 124.66
(22.29) 18.37
10.19 (1.26)
126.00 (87.47)
584 (4.97)
(0.51) (0.97)
15.38 (37.35)
0.18 (1.39)
15.20 (35.96)
(0.59) )
12.36 10.21
11.77 10.21
(6.32) (0.31)
(9.72) (7.99)
{16.04) (8.30)
10.93 (34.05)
281.99 316.04
292.92 281.99
10.93 (34.05)

Note: This cash flow statement has been presented in accordance with “indirect method" as set out in Indian Accounting Standard - 7 * Statement of cash flows' as

specified in Indian Accounting Standard Rules, 2015 (as amended)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date,

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration number 001076N/N500013

WP

Rohit Arora
Partner
Membership No.504774

Place: Gurugram
Date: 22 May 2024

DIN: 09465677

For and o, behaif of the Board of Directors of

DIN: 06927480

G.R.Arora
Director

Place: Gurugram
Date: 22 May 2024

VTV N

Arun Kumar Kaul
Director
DIN : 09127653

f
) p—
Narendgy Jain

Chief Financial Officer
M.No.511778
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Mawana Foods Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity as at 31 March 2024
CIN: U74899DL2006PTC144412

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in ¥ lacs)

A. Equity share capital*

Particulars

Opening balance as at Changes in equity

share capital during the

Balance as at
31 March 2023

Changes in equity
share capital during the

Balance as at
31 March 2024

Equity share capital - 2,003.69 - 2,003.69
Number of equity shares - 20,036,851 - 20,036,851
B. Other equity**
Particulars Reserves and surplus Total

Retained earnlngs Securltles premium
Balance as at 31 March 2022 {4,010.76) 2,244.32 (1,766.44)
Loss for the year (97.76) - (97.76)
Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans 0.01 - 0.01
Balance as at 31 March 2023 {4,108.51) gu.sz (1,864.19!
Loss for the year (45.73) - (45.73)
Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans 0.13 - 0.13
Balance as at 31 March 2024 (4,154.11) 2,244.32 {1,909.79)

*Refer note 10 for details
**Refer note 11 for details

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

This is the Statement of Change in Equity referred to in our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Fipmy Registration No. 001076N/N500013

/Lt P

Rohit Arora
Partner
Membership No.504774

Place: Gurugram
Date: 22 May 2024

For and on
Mawana

half of the Board of Directors of

ds Private Limited

Arun Kumar Kaul
Director
DIN: 09127653

Director
DIN: 08465677

Place: Gurugram
Date: 22 May 2024

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

}

J
o—
Nar’;n%i]hain

Chief Financial Officer
M.No.511778
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Mawana Foods Private Limited

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2024

CIN: U74899DL2006PTC144412

1. Corporate information

Mawana Foods Private Limited is a Private Limited Company (“the Company”) incorporated on 03 January 2006,
formerly known as Mawana Foods Limited and Siel Edible Oils Limited. The Company is primarily engaged in the
business of trading of sugar under the brand name “Mawana Sugar”.

2. General information and compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
(hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA’) under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended
and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 were authorized and approved for issue by the Board
of Directors on 22 May 2024.

2A. Material accounting policies
a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under
Section 133 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time),
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 and the relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a historical cost convention except for certain
financial instruments which are measured at fair value.

The Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies for the periods presented except where a newly issued
accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the
accounting policy hitherto in use.

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs, except wherever
otherwise indicated.

b) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current and non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:

» Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

s Held primarily for the purpose of trading
Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

it is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting

period
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Mawana Foods Private Limited

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2024 (cont’d)

CIN: U74899DL2006PTC144412

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

¢) Revenue recognition

The Company has applied Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. Revenue (other than for those items
to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is measured based on the consideration specified in a
contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties, if any. The Company recognizes
revenue when it transfers control over a product or service to a customer.

To determine whether to recognize revenue, the Company follows a 5-step process:

1. Identifying the contract with a customer

2. Identifying the performance obligations

3. Determining the transaction price

4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations

5. Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied.

Identifying the performance obligations

Under Ind AS 115, the Company must evaluate the separability of the promised goods or services based on whether
they are ‘distinct’. A promised good or service is ‘distinct’ if both:

o the customer benefits from the item either on its own or together with other readily available resources, and
« it is ‘separately identifiable’ (i.e. the Company does not provide a significant service integrating, modifying or
customizing it). .

Determining the transaction price

Under Ind AS 115, the Company shall consider the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to
determine the transaction price. The transaction price excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The
consideration promised include fixed amounts, variable amounts, or both.

Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations

The transaction price is allocated to the separately identifiable performance obligations on the basis of their standalone
selling price. For services that are not provided separately, the standalone selling price is estimated using adjusted
market assessment approach.

Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time, when (or as) the Company satisfies performance
obligations by transferring the promised goods or services to its customers.

Sale of traded goods:
For transfer of goods, the Company recognizes revenue when the customers obtain the control of goods. This usually
happens when the customer gains right to direct the use of and obtains substantially ail benefits from the goods. For
the goods sold, the Company receives amount majorly in advance from the customers and therefore, there is no
significant financing component involved. .J :
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Mawana Foods Private Limited

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2024 (cont’d)

CIN: U74899DL2006PTC144412

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue excludes sales tax/value
added tax/service tax/goods and service tax.

The specific recognition criteria described above must also be met before revenue is recognized:

d) Taxes

Income tax comprises of current and deferred tax. It is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent
that is related to an item recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantlvely
enacted, at the reporting date in the country where the Company operates and generates taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred income tax
liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset
to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.

e) Leases

The Company’s lease asset class primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company assesses whether
a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether
a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

0] the contract involves the use of an identified asset.
(i) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the pericd
of the lease and;
iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.
At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a corresponding

lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 months or less
(short-term leases) and low value leases. 7
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Mawana Foods Private Limited

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2024 (cont’d)

CIN: U74899DL2006PTC144412

The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for
any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less ary
lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term
and useful life of the underlying asset. The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value
of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease
liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been
classified as financing cash flows.

f) Inventories

Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of inventories is computed on a
weighted average basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

g) Post-employment and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no statutory nor
contractual obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the
contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution
already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid.
If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then
excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future
payment or a cash refund.

Gratuity liability being a defined benefit obligation is provided for on the basis of actuarial valuation on projected unit
credit method made at the end of each financial year. Actuarial gains and losses for defined benefit plan are
recognized in full in the year in which they occur in the statement of profit and loss.

Measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Actuarial gains/losses
are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
*The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
*The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company

recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the consolidated statement of

profit and loss:

- Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements; and

*Net interest expense or income

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee
benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay
as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee
benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial
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Mawana Foods Private Limited

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2024 (cont’d)

CIN: U74899DL2006PTC144412

valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in full in
the period in which they occur in the statement of profit and ioss.

h) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value using best estimates. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the statement the profit and loss.

Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets. There are no financial assets at fair value through profit and
loss (FVTPL) or through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).

Amortized cost

A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost using effective interest rates if both of the following conditions
are met:

.financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

.contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

impairment of financial asset

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured
at amortized cost.

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at
amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk. Note 31 details how the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.
For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach required by Ind AS 109, which requires
expected lifetime losses 1o be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at
the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets). The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument
(for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument.
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Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2024 (cont’d)

CIN: U74899DL2006PTC144412

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other
payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to
the short maturity of these instruments.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition under Ind AS 109. A financial
liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognised from the Company’s balance sheet when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or canceiled or expires.

i) Earnings per share

Basic Earnings per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders
(after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted number of equity shares outstanding
during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effect of
all dilutive potential equity shares.

j) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of

_ three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the
balance sheet.

k) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when present obligations as a result of a past event will probably lead to an outflow of
economic resources from the Company and amounts can be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the outflow may
still be uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal or constructive commitment that has resulted
from past events. Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses. Provisions are measured at the estimated
expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the reporting
date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Where there are a number of similar
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material.
Any reimbursement that the Company can be virtually certain to collect from a third party with respect to the obligation
is recognized as a separate asset. However, this asset may not exceed the amount of the related provision. All
provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Contingent liabilities

In those cases, where the possible outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is considered not
probable or where the amount of the obligation cannot be determined reliably, no liability is recognized.

Contingent assets

Possible inflows of economic benefits to the Company that do not yet meet the recognition criteria of-an ésse; are
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Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
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CIN: U74899DL2006PTC144412

2B.

2C.

considered contingent assets.
I) Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company'’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related
disclosures.

Significant management judgements

The following are significant management judgements in applying the accounting policies of the Company that have
the most significant effect on the financial statements.

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an
assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

Contingent liabilities — At each balance sheet date basis the management judgement, changes in facts and legal
aspects, the Group assesses the requirement of provisions against the pending litigations. However, the actual future
outcome may be different from such judgement.

Significant estimates

Information about estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect on recognition and measurement
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses is provided below. Actual results may be different.

Impairment of financial assets — At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over expected
life, the management assesses the expected credit loss on outstanding receivables and advances.

Changes in accounting policies

There have been certain changes in the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) during the current financial year.
However, these does not have any material impact on the accounting policies followed by the Company during the
year.

Amendment to Accounting Standards (Ind AS) issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. MCA, vide its circular dated 31 March 2024 has
issued Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 to further amend the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. These amendments does not have any material impacts on the financial
statements of the Company.
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Note 3A : Property, plant and equipment

Particulars Office Plant and Computer Furniture Total
equipments Machinery equipments and fixtures
Gross carrying amount
Balance as at 31 March 2022 1.70 4.36 15.44 0.23 21,73
Additions - - 5 = C
Disposal/Adjustments - - e A 5
Balance as at 31 March 2023 1.70 4.36 15.44 0.23 21.73
Additions - - 0.59 - 0.59
Disposal/Adjustments 0.98 - - 0.23 1.21
Balance as at 31 March 2024 0.72 4.36 16.03 - 21.11
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 31 March 2022 1.27 1.66 13.93 0.20 17.06
Depreciation charge for the year 0.14 0.83 0.75 0.01 1.73
Reversal of disposal - - E 2 o
Balance as at 31 March 2023 141 2.49 14.68 0.21 18.79
Depreciation charge for the year 0.09 0.83 0.11 0.00 1.03
Reversal of disposal 0.96 - - 0.21 1.17
Balance as at 31 March 2024 0.54 3.32 14.79 - 18.65
Net carrying amount
Balance as at 31 March 2023 0.29 1.87 0.76 0.02 2,94
Balance as at 31 March 2024 0.18 1.04 1.24 - 2.46

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Note 3B: Right of use assets

Particulars fe)et gsiat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

a) Right of use assets

Net carrying amount at the end of the year 28.96 -
b} Lease Liabilities

Non-current 17.61 -

Current (refer note 34) 13.11 -

30.72 -

c) Lease related disclosures

The Company has leases mainly for the land and buildings. With the exception of short-term leases, each lease is reflected on
the balance sheet as a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. There are no variable lease payments included in the
agreement.

i. Extension and termination options
Extension and termination options are included in all leases. These terms are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms
of managing contracts.

ii. Lease payments not included in measurement of lease liability

The Company has elected not to recognise a lease liability for short term leases (leases of expected term of 12 months or
less). Payments made under such leases are expensed on a straight-line basis. The expense relating to payments not
included in the measurement of the lease liability is as follows:

: For the year ended For the year ended
Rardoular 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Amount of leases which are for short term of 12 months or less 12.92 16.80

jii. The following are amounts recognised in profit or loss with respect to leasing arrangements:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Arnortisation on right of use assets " 11.49 7.30

Interest expense on lease liabilities 2.89 0.31

iv. Total cash outflow in respect of leases during the year amounts to ¥ 9.72 lacs. (Previous Year ¥ 7.99 lacs)

v. Maturity of lease liabilities
Refer Note 31(b) for maturity of lease liabilities

vi.There are no lease covenants for the leases entered by the Company.

(This space has been intentionally left blank) ’ ¢
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Note 4 : Intangible assets

Particulars Software Total
Gross carrying amount

Balance as at 31 March 2022 1.37 1.37
Additions = =
Balance as at 31 March 2023 1.37 1.37
Additions 5 o
Balance as at 31 March 2024 1.37 1.37
Accumulated Amortisation

Balance as at 31 March 2022 1.35 1.35
Amortisation for the year - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 1.35 1.35
Amortisation for the year - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 1.35 1.35
Net carrying amount

Balance as at 31 March 2023 0.02 0.02
Balance as at 31 March 2024 0.02 0.02

Note:

A. There is no pledge on the property, plant and equipment of the Company.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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As at

Particulars 31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Note 5 : Other non-current assets
Advance Income Tax

- Considered good 1.93 1.75
- Considered doubtful 11.70 11.70
13.63 13.45
Less: Provision for doubtful balances (11.70) (11.70).
1.93 1.75
Note & : Inventories
Stock-in-trade * 60.08 37.84
60.09 37.84
* Inventories are net of provision for damage, near expiry and expired stock of ¥ 0.55 lacs (Previous year ¥ 1.65 lacs).
As at As at
Note 7 : Trade Recelvables 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Trade receivable - Considered good (unsecured) 111.32 68.50
Trade receivable - Credit impaired 104.80 110.16
216.12 178.66
Less: Expected Credit Loss allowance (104.80) (110.16)
111.32 68.50
Expected Credit Losses
Opening Provision 110.16 100.17
Add: Provided during the year/(Reversals) (5.36) 9.99
Closing Provision 104.80 110.16
Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule
Not due Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 6 6 month-1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
months years
As at 31 March 2024
(iy Undisputed Trade Receivables-considered good 107.22 4,09 0.01 - - - 111.32
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables-which have significant
increase in credit risk - - - - - - -
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables-credit impaired - - - - - 104.80 104.80
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables-considered good - - - - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables-which have significant
increase in credit risk - - - - - - -
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables-credit impaired - - - - - - -
Total 107.22 4.09 0.01 . - 104.80 216.12
Not due Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 6 6 month-1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
months years
As at 31 March 2023
(i Undisputed Trade Receivables-considered good 66.46 2.04 - - - - 68.50
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables-which have significant
increase in credit risk B : - : ) : i
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables-credit impaired - - 0.43 493 73.73 31.07 110.16
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables-considered good - - - - - - 5
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables-which have significant .
increase in credit risk ° i B i ) .
{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables-credit impaired = - - - B 5 A
Total 66.46 2.04 0.43 4.93 73.73 31.07 178.66
Particulars jeat e

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Note 8 : Cash and cash equivalents

Balance with banks 15.96 16.06
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 276.96 265.93
292.92 281.99
Note 9 : Other current assets
Balance with government authorities™
- Considered good 33.75 46.12
- Considered doubtful - 10.05
33.75 56.17
Less: Provision for doubtful balances - (10.05)
33.75 46.12
Prepaid expenses 4,74 3.00
Advance to suppliers 1.42 0.84
Other advances - 0.14
39.91 50.10

A sum of ¥ 33.75 lacs (31 March 2023: ¥ 46.12 lacs), has been assessed as recoverable by the management based on utisation against future sales orders, based on management

approved projections.
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As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Particulars :
Numb Amount Number Amount
Note 10 : Equity
a) Share Capital
i) Authorised share capital
Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each 25,000,000 2,500.00 25,000,000 2,500.00
25,000,000 2,500.00 25,000,000 2,500.00
ii) Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each 20,036,851 2,003.69 20,036,851 2,003.69
20,036,851 2,003.69 20,036,851 2,003.69
iii) Reconciliation of equity share capital
Balance at the beginning of the year 20,036,851 2,003.69 20,036,851 2,003.69
Issued during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 20,036,851 2,003.69 20,036,851 2,003.69

iv) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of 210 per share, Each holder of equity shares is entitied to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation
of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all liabilities. The distribution will be in proportion

to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
The Company did not declare any dividend on equity shares for the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023. The dividend if proposed by the Board of Directors, is
subject to the approval of shareholders in the Annual General Meeting, except interim dividend.

v) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of shares in Company

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Particula o, o,
fculars No. of shares e 'f)f No. of shares A' (."
Holding Holding
Usha International Limited* 13,277,050 66.26% 13,277,050 66.26%
Mawana Sugars Limited 6,759,801 33.74% 6,759,801 33.74%
Total 20,036,851 100% 20,036,851 100%

*(Including six equity shares held by nominee shareholder. The beneficial interest rests with Usha International Limited)

As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the
above shareholding pattern represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

vi) Details of Shares held by Holding Company

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
N f the Holding C [ o
ame(ohtieiiolding tompany No. of shares e ?f No. of shares o ‘."
Holding Holding
Usha International Limited* 13,277,050 66.26% 13,277,050 66.26%
Total 13,277,050 66.26% 13,277,050 66.26%

*(Including six equity shares held by nominee shareholder. The beneficial interest rest with Usha International Limited)

vii)_Details of shareholding of promoters:

No. of shares as on  Paid up value Balance as at Changes in equity Balance as at
) 31 March 2023 per share 31 March  share capital during the 31 March 2024
Particulars 2023 year
Usha International Limited* 13,277,050 10 1,327.71 - 1,327.71
Mawana Sugars Limited 6,759,801 10 675.98 - 675.98
Total 20,036,851 2,003.68 - 2,003.69

*(Including six equity shares held by nominee shareholder. The beneficial interest rest with Usha International Limited)

viii) Shares reserved for issue under options
The Company has not reserved any shares for issuance under options.

ix) Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period of five years immediately

preceding 31 March 2024.
The Company has not issued bonus shares, equity shares for consideration other than cash and also no shares have been bought back during the period of five years

immediately preceding the reporting date.

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Note 11 : Other equity
Reserves and surplus®
Security premium reserves 2,244.32 2,244.32
Retained Earnings (4,154.11) (4,108.51)
(1,909.79) (1,854.19)

* The movement of the reserves and surplus is presented in the Statement of Changes in Equity.

Nature and description of Reserve and Surplus is as follows:

Security premium reserves
Securities premium reserve represents premium received on issue of shares. The reserve will be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act.

Retained Earmings
Comprises of accumulated losses earned by the Company till date and balance of profit and loss at each year end and include the remeasurements benefits. on defined

benefits plans through other comprehensive income.

46




Mawana Foods Private Limited

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory Information for the year ended 31 March 2024

CIN: U74899DL.2006PTC144412
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in ¥ lacs)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Note 12 : Lease liabilities*
Non current

Lease liabilities 17.61 -
17.61 -
Current
Lease liabilities 13.11 -
_30.72 -
*Refer Note 3B for further details
Note 13 : Provisions
A. Non current
- Provisons for gratuity (refer note 28 B) 18.01 17.61
- Provisons for compensated absences (refer note 28 C) 10.63 11.83
28.64 29.44
B. Current
- Provisons for gratuity (refer note 28 B) 3.35 3.01
- Provisons for compensated absences (refer note 28 C) 2.37 2.54
572 5.55
Note 14 : Trade payables
Total outstanding due to micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note (A) below) 16.54 18.44
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 331.00 224,96
347.54 243.40
Trade payables Ageing Schedule
Particulars Unbilled Not due Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
L§Es than) 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
1year
As at 31 March 2024
Total outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and small - 16.54 - - - - 16.54
enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro 79.19 229.28 22,53 - - - 331.00
enterprises and small enterprises
Disputed Dues of Micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - - -
Disputed Dues of creditors other than Micro enterprises and - - - - - - -
small enterprises
79.19 245.82 22.53 - - - 347.54
Particulars Unbilled Not due Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Laggithan 1-2 years 2.3 years More than 3 years Total
1 year
As at 31 March 2023
Total outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and small 18.42 0.02 - - - 18.44
enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro 64.97 159.59 0.01 - 0.37 0.02 224.96
enterprises and small enterprises
Disputed Dues of Micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - - -
Disputed Dues of creditors other than Micro enterprises and - - - - - - -
small enterprises
64.97 178.01 0.03 - 0.37 0.02 243.40
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

intimation from the ‘Supplier' regarding their status under the Act.

(i) the principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately)

at the end of accounting year - Principal amount remaining unpaid, and

- Interest accrued and remaining unpaid

Note (A); Detail of dues of Micro and Small Enterprises as defined MSMED Act, 2008, to the extent the Company has received

remaining unpaid to any supplier as

(i) the amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made
to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year,
(iif) the amount of interest due and payable for the period (where the principal has been paid but interest under the MSMED Act, 2006 not

paid);

(iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year; and
(v) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date when the interest

dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a d

under section 23.

1. According to the records of the Company, there are no overdue principal amount/interest pay:
to Micro and Small enterprises doesn't include any amount due for period mare than the stipulate!

eductible expenditure

16.54

18.44

16.54

18.44

able for delayed payment to such vendors at the balance sheet date
d time prescribed under the MSMED Act, 2006.

. the amount payable

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Note 15 : Other financial liabilities
Employee related payables

Interest accrued

Security deposits

2.04 2.19
3.31 3.09
3.02 3.02
8.37 8.30
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Particulars At Lo
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Note 16 : Other current liabilities )
Statutory dues payable 6.37 7.50
Contract Liabilities :
Advance from customers 16.35 9.45
22.72 16.95
Note 17 : Revenue from operations
Revenue from sale of traded goods (refer Note below) 3,403.41 3,247.19
3,403.41 3,247.19

Disaggregation of revenue from operations:

The table below presents disaggregated revenue from contracts with customers by geography, offerings and sales channels for the business
of the Company. The Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of our
revenues and cash flows are effected by industry, market and other economic factors. The management of the Company does not
separately review the different sources of revenues for the Company.

Note:

A. Revenues by Offerings

Sale of traded goods 3,403.41 3,247.19
3,403.41 _ 324719

B. Revenues by products

Soaps 12.09 23.19

Sugar 3,391.32 3,224.00
3,403.41 3,247.19

C. Revenues disaggregation disclosure as per Ind AS 115

Performance obligation satisfied at point of time 3,403.41 3,247.19
3,403.41 3,247.19

D. Reconciliation of revenue from sale of products with the contracted price

Contracted price 3,454.30 3,282.27

Less: Trade discount, rebate, volume discount, etc (50.89) (35.08)
3,403.41 3,247.19

E.Contract Balances

Contract liabilities™ 16.35 9.45

16.356 9.45

“The contract liabilities are in form of advance received from customer for which the obligation of supply of goods/service has not been
completed as at the year- end.
Movement in contract assets and contract liabilities

Opening balance of contract liabilities 9.45 11.51
Addition in balance of contract liabilities for current year 16.35 9.45
Amount of revenue recognised against opening contract liabilities (9.45) (11.51)
Closing balance of contract liabilities 16.35 9.45
Note 18 : Other income
Interest income 12.36 10.21
Excess provisions/liabilities written back 27.38 6.25
Miscellaneous Income 0.08 2.29
Others - 0.03
39.82 18.78

Note 19 :Purchase of stock-in-trade
Sugar and Soaps 2,893.28 2,759.17
Purchase of stock-in-trade 2,893.28 2,759.17

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Note 20 : Change in inventories of stock-in-trade
Opening balance (see note-a) 37.84 56.21
Closing balance (see note-a) 60.09 37.84
{22.25) 18.37
Note (a) : Closing balance of stock-in-trade
Sugar 60.09 37.84
60.09 37.84
Note 21 : Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 277.27 276.71
Contribution to provident fund (refer note 28A) 12.65 13.24
Gratuity and compensated absences (refer note 28B and 28C) 7.12 8.55
Staff welfare expenses 0.73 2.47
297.77 300.94
Note 22 : Finance cost
Interest expense on leases 2.89 0.31
Interest expense to vendors 3.64 0.21
6.53 0.562
Note 23 : Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Depreciation of Property, plant and equipment 1.03 1.72
Depreciation on Right of use asset 11.49 7.30
12.52 9.02
Note 24 : Other expenses
Rent* 12.92 16.80
Insurance 7.53 5.59
Legal and professional charges (refer Note (a)) below 17.21 23.74
Auditor Remuneration 14.10 13.94
Directors Sitting Fees 1.80 1.90
Travelling and conveyance 17.05 17.94
Repair & Maintenance 34 4.47
Advertising and promotion 8.34 0.54
Selling and distribution 102.91 101.80
Freight and cartage 66.52 58.27
Rates and taxes 45.27 8.05
Provision for doubtful advance/balances - 7.15
Loss allowance on trade receivables - 9.98
Miscellaneous 4.05 3.70
301.11 273.88
*Expense for the year ended 31 March 2024 pertains to short term leases. Refer note 2(f) for accounting policy on leases.
Note (a) : Payment to auditors
Statutory Audit fees (including quarterly reviews) 10.00 10.00
Tax audit fees 1.00 1.00
Fees for other audit related services 2.00 2.00
Reimbursement of expenses 1.10 0.94
Total payments to auditors 14.10 13.94

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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As at As at

Raetioulan 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Note 25 :
A

B

c

o

m

fii.

Tax expense

Income tax recognised in statement of profit and loss

Profit and loss section

Current income tax

Current income tax charge - -

Deferred tax
Change in deferred tax balance (nef) - B

Total tax expense B -

Other Comprehensive iIncome section

Deferred tax related to items recognised in 0OC|\ during in the year:

Net gain/(loss) on remeasurement of defined (0.13) (0.01)
benefit plans

Income tax charged to OCI - -

Reconciliation of Effective tax rate

Accounting profit before tax {45.73) (95.93)
india's statutory income tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
At India's statutory income tax (11.51) (24.14)

Non deductible expenses for tax purpose:

Non-deductible expenses 1.47 (0.11)
Income not taxable - -
Brought forward business loss adjustment - -
Effect of income taxed on lower rate - -

Income tax adjustment of earlier years - 1.83
Deferred tax not created on current year business loss and other items 5.57 20.81
Others 4.786 3.44
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss (0.00) 1.83

Reconciliation of deferred tax asset (net)

Opening balance - o
Tax expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss = o
Closing balance

Unused tax losses

Brought forward losses

The Company has not recognised deferred tax assets of ¥ 254.01 lacs (previous year F 249,83 lacs) on the brought
forward business losses (including unabsorbed depreciation) and on other items, as it is not reasonably certain that the
Company shall generate sufficient taxable business profits in foreseeable future considering the Company had
undergone restructuring during the current year for its operations. The unrecognised deferred tax assets expires, if
unutilised, based on the year of origination as follows:

. Deferred tax asset on carried forward unabsorbed depreciation as at 31 March 2024 not recognised is ¥0.37 lacs

(previous year ¥ 0.52 lacs).

i. Deferred tax asset on carried forward unabsorbed business loss as at 31 March 2024:

Year of origination Year of expiry Amounts in Rs.Lacs
31-Mar-16 31-Mar-24 18.12
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-26 60.16
31-Mar-19 31-Mar-27 9.37
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-28 110.57
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-29 16.68
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-31 20.29
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-32 6.04

241.22

Deffered tax asset {net) on other items is ¥ 12.42 lacs (previous year ¥ 14,13 lacs) .
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As at

Particulars 31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Note 26 : Loss per equity share (Basic and diluted)

Loss attributable to equity shareholders (45.73)
Number of equity share outstanding at the beginning 200.37

Number of equity share outstanding at the end 200.37

Weighted average number of equity shares for basic and diluted earnings per share 200.37

{(Face value of 210 per share)

Loss per equity share operations (Basic and Diluted) (0.23)

(97.76)
200.37
200.37
200.37

(0.49)

As at

Partlculars 31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Note 27 : Contingent liabilities and commitments
{a) Claims agalnst the Company not acknowledged as debts

i) Sale tax matters, disputed and under appealirectification (refer note a) 2.22

2.22

2,22

2.22

a) There is pending litigation for incorrect utilisation of input tax credit with the department at various levels. The Company is confident about

the outcome of the case as they have all the forms that are required to be deposited with the department and believ
currently required in these financial statements at this stage.

{b) Capital and other commitments
There are no capital and other commitment as at the year ended 31st March 2024.

Note 28 : Employee benefit obligations
A. Defined contribution plan

es that no adjustment is

Particulars As at A at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Employer's contribution to provident fund 12.65 13.21
12.65 13.21

B. Defined Benefit Plans:
Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of continuous service get a
gratuity on departure at fifteen day salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The Company provides for liability in its
books of accounts based on actuarial valuation. The following table summarise the components of net benefit expenses recognized in

statement of profit and loss and the amount recorgnized in the balance sheet for gratuity benefit:

As at

Particulars 31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

a) Amounts recognized in the balance sheet

Current liability (A) 3.35 3.01
Non-current liability (B) 18.01 17.61
Total ( A+B) 21.36 20.62
b) Expenses recognized in other comprehensive ingome
Actuarial (gain) net on account of :
- Actuarial gain for the year on present vaiue of defined benefit obligation (0.13) (0.01)
Net gain recognized {0.13) {0.01)
c) Expenses recognized in the statement of profit and loss
Current service cost 2.93 3.22
Interest cost 1.52 1.62
4.45 4.74

Net benefit expenses
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As at
Particulars 31 March 2024

31 March 2023

d) Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet is as under:

Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>